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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 8" Annual General Meeting of Bikewo Green Tech Limited
will be held on Saturday, the 31% day of August, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. at Plot N0.502B, Amara
Jyothi, Road No.31, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, Hyderabad, Telangana, India, 500033 to transact
the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditor’s thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rama Mohan Thammineni, (DIN: 02331058) who
retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Appointment of Statutory Auditors:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution
for appointment of M/s N G Rao & Associates., Chartered Accountants as the statutory
Auditors of the Company:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139,141,142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there
under, as amended from time to time, M/s. N G Rao & Associates (FRN: 009399S)
Chartered Accountants, Hyderabad be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company to hold the office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting for
a period of 5 years, on such remuneration as may be agreed upon by the Board of
Directors and the Auditors, in addition to reimbursement of all out of pocket expenses in
connection with the audit of the accounts of the Company.”

For and on behalf of
Bikewo Green Tech Limited

Sd/-
Manideep Katepalli
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:07840019
Place: Hyderabad
Date: July 18, 2024

Reg Office:

Plot No0.502B, Amara Jyothi, Road No.31,
Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, Hyderabad,
Telangana, India, 500033



BIKEWO GREEN TECH LIMITED SO ™
BikeWo

Electrifying India

Notes:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself/herself and such proxy need not be a member of the Company.
The proxy form duly signed must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not
later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the
meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified true copy of the relevant Board
resolution together with specimen signature of the representative(s) authorized under the
said Board resolution and vote on their behalf.

3. The Register of Directors and KMPs and their shareholding maintained under Section 170
of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the annual
general meeting.

4. The Register of Contracts and Arrangements in which Directors are interested maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the
members at the annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of
Bikewo Green Tech Limited

Sd/-

Manideep Katepalli

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN:07840019
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Director Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 8" Annual Report together with the Audited
Financial Statements comprising Balance Sheet of the Company as at March 31, 2024,
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024 and the Auditor’s Report
thereon.

Financial Summary:

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars 2023-24 2022-22
Revenue From Operation 2498.78 2056.85
Other Income 15.43 5.01
Total Income 2514.21 2061.86
Expenses 2281.31 2050.18
Profit Before Tax 232.90 11.68
Tax Expenses 65.69 1.88
Net Profit 167.21 9.80

During the year under review, the aggregate earnings stood at Rs.2514.21 lakhs and the total
expenditure stood at Rs. 2281.31 lakhs. The year resulted in net profit of Rs.167.21 lakhs after
taxation. The surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss stood at Rs.167.21 lakhs as at 31.03.2024.
No amount has been carried to any Reserves for the financial year 2023-24 and the Company
did not declare any dividend on equity shares.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to which the
financial statements relate and date of report.

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year 2023-24 to which the
Financial Statement relates and the date of the Report.

Change in nature of Business: During the year under review, there was no change in the
nature of the business of the Company.

Share Capital:
The paid-up equity capital of the company as on March 31, 2024 is Rs.9,15,72,500/- consisting

of 91,57,250 equity shares of Rs.10/- each. During the F.Y 2023-24 Four allotments have been
made as follows:

Sl.no | Type of Allotment Date of Allotment No. of Shares
1. Preferential Allotment 13-10-2023 3,25,000

2. Preferential Allotment 16-10-2023 3,34,700

3. Preferential Allotment 29-11-2023 9,62,900

4 Bonus Issue 05-12-2023 54,94,350
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Dividend: No dividend has been recommended by the Board of Directors
for the Financial Year 2023-24.

Transfer to reserve: Your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to general reserve.
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
The Board of directors of the Company has an optimum combination of Executive, Non-

Executive and Independent Directors. The following are the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company as at March 31, 2024.

SI. No. | Name of the Director Designation
1. Mr. Manideep Katepalli Chairman & Managing Director
2. Mr. Rama Mohan Thammineni Whole-time Director
3. Mr. Jignesh Purshottam Bellani Independent Director
4. Mrs. Archana Devi Raj Independent Director
5. Mr. Rajesh Pamarti Independent Director
6. Mr. Varun Jain Non- Executive Non-Independent Director
7. Ms. Taj Unnissa Begum Non- Executive Non-Independent Director
8. Mr. Sivaji Dusari Chief Financial Officer
9. Mrs. Rakshita Agarwal Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer

Changes in Directors or Key Managerial Personal:

During the year under review following were the changes in the composition of Directors /
Key Managerial Personnel:

1. Mr. Manideep Katepalli was appointed as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f.
20.11.2023.

2. Mr. Rama Mohan Thammineni was designated as Whole-Time Director of the
Company w.e.f. 20.11.2023.

3. Ms. Taj Unnisa Begum was appointed as Non- Executive Non-Independent Director
of the Company w.e.f. 20.11.2023.

4. Mr. Varun Jain was appointed as Non- Executive Non-Independent Director of the
Company w.e.f. 20.11.2023.

5. Mr. Pamarti Rajesh was appointed as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f.
20.11.2023.

6. Mr Satyapoorna Chander Yalamanchili resigned as the Director of the Company w.e.f.
29.11.2023.

7. Mrs. Upadhyayula Karuna Gayatri resigned as the Director of the Company w.e.f.
29.11.2023.
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8. Mr. Sivaji Dusari was appointed as Chief Financial Officer of the

Company w.e.f. 20.12.2023.

9. Mrs. Archana Devi Raj was appointed as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f.

04.12.2023.

10. Mr. Allu Surendra was appointed as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f.

04.12.2023 and resigned on 16.01.2024

11. Mrs. Rakshita Agarwal was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

of the Company w.e.f. 16.01.2024.

12. Mr. Jignesh Purshottam Bellani was appointed as Independent Director of the

Company w.e.f. 20.02.2024.

Directors retiring by rotation

Mr. Rama Mohan Thammineni, Whole-Time Director is liable to retire by rotation at the
ensuing 8™ annual general meeting and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment.

Declaration from Independent Directors

The Company received declarations under section 149(6) from the Independent Directors
confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under section 149(6) of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Company also received a declaration of compliance of sub-rule
(1) and sub-rule (2) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors)

Rules, 2014.

Number of Meetings of the Board: During the year 2023-24, the Board met 17 (Seventeen)
times on the following dates and the gap between each Board Meeting is within the prescribed

limit of 120 days:

SI No Date of the Meeting Number of Directors attended
1 02.05.2023 3
2 26.05.2023 3
3 01.07.2023 3
4 14.07.2023 3
5 19.07.2023 3
6 24.07.2023 3
7 28.07.2023 3
8 08.09.2023 3
9 13.10.2023 3
10 16.10.2023 3
11 11.11.2023 3
12 14.11.2023 3
13 29.11.2023 5
14 05.12.2023 7
15 20.12.2023 7
16 16.01.2024 7
17 20.02.2024 7
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Audit Committee:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors
constituted the Audit Committee. The composition of the Audit Committee and the details of
the meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of the Category Chairman | Number of Meetings during the
Director / Member FY 2023-24
Held Entitled to Attended
attend
Mr. Jignesh Independent Chairman 1 1 1
Purshottam Bellani Director
Mr. Rama Mohan Whole time Member 1 1 1
Thammineni Director
Ms Taj Unnissa Non-Executive Non | Member 1 1 1
Begum Independent
Director
Mr. Rajesh Pamarti Independent Member 1 1 1
Director

Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors constituted
Nomination and Remuneration committee. The composition of the Nomination and
Remuneration committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name of the Director Category Chairman | Number of Meetings during the
/ Member FY 2023-24
Held Entitled to | Attended
attend

Mr. Rajesh Pamarti Independent Chairman 2 2 2

Director
Mrs. Archana Devi Independent Member 2 2 2
Raj Director
Ms Taj Unnissa Non-Executive Member 2 2 2
Begum Non

Independent
Director

Stakeholders Relationship Committee:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors
constituted the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The composition of the Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and the details of the meetings attended by its members are given

below:
Name of the Category Chairman | Number of Meetings during the
Director / Member FY 2023-24
Held Entitled to Attended
attend
Mr. Rajesh Pamarti Independent Chairman 1 1 1
Director
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Mrs. Archana Devi Independent Member 1 1 1
Raj Director
Ms. Taj Unnissa Non-Executive Non | Member 1 1 1
Begum Independent

Director

Remuneration Policy:

The Company adopted a policy relating to the remuneration of Directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees as per section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 available in
the website of the company i.e www.bikewo.in. The remuneration policy for members of the
Board and for Management aims at improving the performance and enhancing the value of the
Company by motivating and retaining them and to attract the right persons to the right jobs in
the Company.

Performance Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has carried out
an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees and of individual directors as
per the criteria laid down by the Nomination and Remuneration committee and the Board of
Directors through brief discussions and by considering the views of other directors.

Accordingly, Board found the performance of the Board as a whole, its committees and each of
its directors to be satisfactory and further decided to continue the term of appointment of its
Independent Directors.

Risk Management policy

The Risk Management policy of the Company as formulated is being implemented that is
consistently assisting the Board in identifying the areas and elements of risks. The Company
has in place adequate Internal Control Systems and procedures to combat the risk. Further, the
risk management procedures are periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year
with related parties, were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. A
statement in the prescribed format, Form AOC-2 is attached herewith as Annexure — 1
containing the transactions covered under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Your
directors also draw attention of the members to Note 30 to the financial statements which set
out at related party disclosures.

Deposits:

The Company has neither accepted nor held any deposits pursuant to Section 73 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during
the year under review, consequently there was no amount (on account of principal or interest
on deposits) outstanding as on the date of Balance Sheet.
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Auditors and Auditor’s Report:

M/s. N G Rao & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company in the Extra Ordinary Meeting of the Company held on 20.11.2023 due to
resignation of M/s. Kommula & Co, Chartered Accountants by casual vacancy who holds the
office up to the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors considered the appointment of M/s. N G Rao & Associates, Chartered
Accountants, Hyderabad (FRN: 009399S) as Statutory Auditors of your Company from the
conclusion of 8" Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 13" Annual General Meeting,
subject to approval of members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, a
resolution seeking the appointment of M/s. N G Rao & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as
the Statutory Auditors of your Company is included in the notice convening the Annual
General Meeting for approval of the shareholders.

The Auditor’s Report on the financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 does not contain any reservation, qualification or adverse remark. The
observations and comments given by the Auditors in their report together with the notes to
accounts are self-explanatory and hence do not call for any further comments under Section
134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Fraud reporting

During the financial year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident
of fraud to the Board of Directors of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost audit

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Internal Auditors:

The Company is not required to appoint Internal Auditors for the period 2023-24.

Secretarial Audit Report

Secretarial Audit Not Applicable for the period 2023-24.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements:

The Company has laid down a set of standards, processes and structures to implement Internal
Financial Controls across the organization that commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. Company maintains all its records in SAP system and the work-
flow and approvals are routed through SAP.

The internal auditors carry out audit, covering inter alia, monitoring and evaluating the efficacy
and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its compliance with operating
systems, accounting procedures and submit their periodical internal audit report to the Audit

Committee. The internal auditors have expressed that the internal control system in the
Company is robust and effective. The board has also put in place legal compliance framework
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to ensure compliance of all the applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

Vigil Mechanism:

As per Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism
for Directors and employees to report their genuine concerns. The Company has taken a special
attention and greater emphasis on providing safeguards against victimization of employees
who use such mechanism. Further no personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

Loans, Guarantees or Security and Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013:

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company has not given any loan/s (or) provided any
Guarantee/Security, pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement:
Directors confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss
of the Company for that period,

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings and
outgo:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the required information relating to
conservation of energy, technology absorption Not Applicable to the company.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo : Nil.
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Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Your company has zero tolerance towards Sexual Harassment at the work place and the details
of sexual harassment complaints as per the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules there under are as
follows:

No. of complaints received : Nil
No. of complaints disposed off :NA

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions related to the
constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Material Orders Passed by the Regulators

No significant and material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

Compliance with secretarial standards on board and general meetings

The Company has complied with all the secretarial standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India.

General:

1) The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to voting or otherwise
during the year under review.

2) The Company has not issued shares (including sweat equity shares) to the employees of the
Company under any scheme during the year under review.

3) The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end of
the financial year: Not Applicable

4) The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one- time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions
along with the reasons thereof: Not Applicable

5) Transfer of shares to IEPF during the previous year: Not Applicable

Events after closure of Financial Year:

Board of Directors in their Meeting held on April 04, 2024 resolved to undertake an IPO of its

Equity shares and list its shares on the Stock Exchange (NSE Emerge). The Company has filed
the Draft Red-Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with National Stock exchange India Limited.
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For and on behalf of the Board
Bikewo Green Tech Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Manideep Katepalli Rama Mohan Thammineni
Managing Director Whole-Time Director
DIN:07840019 DIN: 02331058

Place: Hyderabad
Date: July 18, 2024
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Form No. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship NA
(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions NA
(c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions NA
(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the NA
value, if any
(e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NA
(f) | Date(s) of approval by the Board NA
(g) | Amount paid as advances, if any NA
(h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required | NA
under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Rs. In Lakhs
SI. | Name(s) of Nature of Duration of the| Salient terms | Date(s) of | Amount
No | the related contracts / contracts/ of contracts/ approval paid
party and | arrangements | arrangements/ | arrangements by the as
nature of / transactions transactions | /transactions Board, if | advance
relationship any: if any
1. Satyapoorna | Remuneration -- - 02.05.2023 Nil
Chander Rs. 40.00
Yalamanchali
Loan Taken
Rs. 17.03
2. MIC Purchases - - 02.05.2023 Nil
Electronics | Rs.610.66
Limited
(Holding Co | Loan taken
up to Rs. 165.86
11.11.2023)
For and on behalf of the Board
Bikewo Green Tech Limited
Place: Hyderabad
Date: July 18, 2024
Sd/- Sd/-
Manideep Katepalli Rama Mohan Thammineni
Managing Director Whole-Time Director

DIN:07840019 DIN: 02331058
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

The Members

Bikewo Green Tech Limited
Plot No. 502B, Amara Jyothi,
Road No. 31, Jubilee Hills,
Hyderabad, Telangana - 500033

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Bikewo Green Tech Limited (formerly known
as “Bikewo Green Tech Private Limited”) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial
Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”™), of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31% March 2024, its profit (including other comprehensive income), its changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial
Statements.

Emphasis of Matters

a) We draw attention to Provision for Gratuity. The Company has not obtained Actuarial Valuation
Report with regards to Employee’s Gratuity as required by Ind Accounting Standard 19 "Employee
Benefit" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. In the
exact impact to the extent cannot be ascertained in the books of accounts. /

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

H.No. 6-3-1186/A/6, (New No. 325), Flat No.203, D.No. 48-10-20, H.No. 8-22-5/1, FF3,

2nd Floor, Chinna Balreddy Building, Veeramachaneni Building, Neeladri Towers, Pattabi

Adjacent Lane to ITC Kakatiya Hotel, New Govt Hospital Road, Street, Gandhi Nagar, FeFEdlitha Temple,
Begumpet, Hyderabad-500 016. Gunadala, Vijayawada - 520 004  Kakinada - 533 004. V|sakhapatnam 530016

Email : nageswararaog207@gmail.com / nageswararaog@rediffmail.com



Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of the most si gnificance in our
audit of the Financial Statements of the financial year ended 31% March 2024. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the following matters as Key Audit
Matters to be communicated in our report:

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
Revenue recognition Our audit approach includes:
The Company is a two wheeler retailer in | o Obtaining an understanding of the Company’s revenue
India. Revenue is recognised based on the recognising policies & procedures.
Sale of the Electrical Vehicles to the dealers ° Assessing the appropriateness of the revenue
that reflects the consideration received or recognition policies in compliance with the applicable
expected to be received in exchange for the Ind AS.
Electric Vehicles. The company has another | o We performed cut-off testing for a sample of revenue
stream of revenue(i.e., the sale of second transactions around the period end date, to check that
hand cars). they were recognised in the appropriate period.
® Testing the design and operating effectiveness of
management’s key controls in collating the data for
Supplies made/services rendered. ]

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company’s Annual Report, but does not include the Financial Statements, and
our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of
auditor’s report. Thus, our report does not deal with matters mentioned under other information in Annual
Report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind_AS=Spesified under
section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate ACeHunti

O,




accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial
Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b)  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system with
reference to Financial Statement in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

(c)  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify

1r auditor’s
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our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date o
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to £0
concern.



(¢) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of the work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the financial year ended 31* March 2024 and
are therefore the Key Audit Matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulations
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The company has been converted from Private Limited Company to Public Limited Company during the
current financial year (i.e., on 14-12-2023).In-Principle approval of proposed Initial Public Offering of up to
38,86,600 equity shares has been received on July 19, 2024.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Financial Statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
Financial Statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from-gurgexamination of




those books, except for the matters stated in the paragraph 3(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as
amended.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31% March 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
3(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B” to this report. The matters described in the disclaimer of opinion paragraph of
Annexure-B, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

(a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position. Refer
Note No. 36 to the Financial Statements.

~ (b)The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were

any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There are no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company during the year.

(d)(i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company fro/u
or entity(ies), including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, y '% Her




writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(e) The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

(f) Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Company with effect from 1st April 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g)
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, is applicable for the financial year ended
31% March 2024.

Based on our examination, the Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of
account which does not have the feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same did not
operate throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, is applicable from 1%
April 2023, reporting under 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the
financial year ended 3 1% March 2024.

4. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provision of
section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For N G Rao & Associates
Chartered Accountants

G. Nageswara Rao

Place: Hyderabad Partner

Date:18.07.2024 Membership No. 207300
UDIN: 24207300BKASFC5061
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The “Annexure A” referred to in clause 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
Paragraph of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Bikewo Green Tech Limited
(“the Company”) on the Financial Statements as on and for the year ended 315 March 2024.

i) a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

b) We are informed that a test of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment was carried
out by the management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification of these assets is reasonable having regards to the size of the
Company and nature of its assets.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties as disclosed in the Financial Statements, are held in
the name of the Company.

d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during
the year ended 3 1% March 2024.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transaction Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at
reasonable interval during the year and no discrepancies were noticed for any class of inventory.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not availed any working capital limits during the year
from banks or financial institutions. Therefore, the provisions of clause (ii) (b) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

iii)  (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, the Company has provided loans and staff advances during the year to following entities:
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H.No. 6-3-1186/A/6, (New No. 325), Flat No.203, D.No. 48-10-20, H.No. 8-22-5/1, FF3, C ' ai Thirumala
2nd Floor, Chinna Balreddy Building, Veeramachaneni Building, Neeladri Towers, Pattab

Adjacent Lane to ITC Kakatiya Hotel, New Govt Hospital Road, Street, Gandhi Nagar, :

Begumpet, Hyderabad-500 016. Gunadala, Vijayawada - 520 004  Kakinada - 533 004. Vlsakhapatnam 530016
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Particulars of Loans/Advances Rs. in Lakhs

Aggregate amount of loans and advances granted

A. Staff advances 18.46
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date 3 1% March 2024
A. Staff advances 16.13

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices
in India, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and staff advances during the
year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in
India, in our opinion, the Company has given staff advances to its employees during the year as per
the Company’s policy and receipts are generally regular.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in
India, there is no overdue amount.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in
India, there are no loan or staff advances granted that has fallen due during the year, which has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to same
parties.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or staff advances during the
year either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

vi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the Act to the
extent applicable with respect to grant of loans, security, guarantee given, and investments made.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the records
of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the
Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and no order has been passed by Company Law
Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal,
Therefore, the provisions of clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the
Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, for any services rendered by the Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
(vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.




vii)

viii)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in
India, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess, and Other Statutory Dues with the
appropriate authorities. However, certain instances of delays in depositing the taxes to relevant

authorities have been noticed. There are no outstanding undisputed statutory dues on the last day of

financial year concerned for a period of more than 6 months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us there are no dues outstanding of Goods
and Service Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax and Cess on account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income
in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year.

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the documents and records
produced to us, the Company has not defaulted on repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender. ‘

(b) During the course of our examination of the books of account and records of the Company, and
according to the information and explanation given to us, we report that the Company has not been
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any lender.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based
on the documents and records produced to us the Company does not have term loans and hence the
provisions of the provision of sub clause (ix) (c) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and
on an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, we report that funds
raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used for long term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and an overall examination of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and the procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(a)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in
India, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer OL_ﬁurther public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year. Therefore, the provisions of,,ev@( AN paragraph 3

of the order are not applicable to the Company. (/o)




(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in
India, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year. Therefore, the provisions of clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi)  (a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, we have not come across any instance of fraud by the Company. We have neither come across
any instance of fraud on the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed
of any such cases by the management during the course of our audit.

(b) No report under Section 143 (12) of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, with the Central
Government.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, the Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year. Therefore, the
provision of clause (xi)(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xii)(a),
(xii)(b) and (xii)(c) of the paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,,
and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.

xiv) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India, the Company has appropriate internal audit system that commensurate with the size and nature
of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company.

xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him.
Therefore, the provision of clause (xv) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Therefore, the provision of clause (xvi)(a) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is netgpplicable to the
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(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial/housing finance activities during the year.
Therefore, the provision of clause (xvi)(b) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Therefore, the provision of clause (xvi)(c) of the paragraph 3 of Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, Company does not any Group as defined under the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the provision of clause (xvi)(d) of the paragraph 3 of Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the

immediately preceding Financial year.

xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore, the provision of clause

(xviii) of the paragraph 3 of Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios (Refer

Note No. 32 to the Financial Statements), ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a

fall due.
xX) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in
India the provisions of Section 135 does not apply to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
(xx)of the paragraph 3 of Order is not applicable to the Company.
For N G Rao & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn No. 009399
= FRN:0093995 |
HYDERABAD | *
{
G. Nageswara Rao
Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date:18.07.2024 Membership No. 207300

UDIN: 24207300BKASFC5061
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure B, referred to in Clause 2(g) of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements”
Paragraph of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Bikewo Green Tech Limited
on the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended 315 March 2024.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub-
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bikewo Green Tech Limited (“the
Company”) as of 31* March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on

Auditing, issued by ICAT and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether

due to fraud or error. —
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial Statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Financial
Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial
Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control systems over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31.03.2024, based on the internal control over the financial reporting criteria established by the company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For N G Rao & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Regn No. 009399

G. Nageswara Rao
Place: Hyderabad Partner
Date:18.07.2024 Membership No. 207300

UDIN: 24207300BKASFC5061



Bikewo Green Tech Limited
(Formerly known as Bikewo Green Tech Private Limited)
CIN : U74999TG2016PLC113345
Annexure I- Statement of Assets and Liabilities
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Note As at As at
Particulars
Nos. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
A. Non Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 1 191.23 224.65
(b) Capital work-in-progress 1 954.79 706.88
(c) Other intangible assets 2 7.39 9.58
(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 3 - -
(e) Other non-current assets 4 - 1.80
Total (A) 1,153.41 942.91
B. Current Assets
(a) Inventories 5 1,035.33 741.38
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 71.37 108.83
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 7.42 3.84
(iii) Short-term loans and advances 8 708.06 43.09
(c) Other current assets 9 169.76 122.35
Total (B) 1,997.94 1,019.49
Total Assets (A+B) 3,151.35 1,962.40
Equity and Liabilities
A. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 10 915.73 204.03
(b) Other equity 11 760.97 519.11
Total (A) 1,676.69 723.14
Liabilities
B. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 12 121.21 180.48
(b) Deferred tax liability 3 13.81 342
Total (B) 135.03 183.90
C. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 631.41 580.51
(ii) Trade payables 13
(a) total outstanding dues of micro 194.97 -
enterprises and small enterprises; and
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other 17.78 84.51
than micro enterprises and small
(b) Other current liabilities 14 440.16 390.34
(c) Current tax liabilities (net) 15 55.30 . -
Total (C) 1,339.62 1,055.36
Total Equity and Liabilities (A+B+C) 3,151.35 1,962.40

The above statement should be read with Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure V, and
Notes to Financial Information appearing in Annexure VI.
This is the Statement of Assets and Liabilities referred to in our report of even date.

For N G Rao & Associates For Bikewo Green Tech Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Nu S\
‘ i
< FRN:009399s Manideep Katepalli Rama Mohan Thammin
* HYDERABAD Managing Director Director

DIN:07840019 DIN: 02331058

Partner
M. No.:207300
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 18.07.2024

7

ivaji Dusari Rakshita Agarwal
CFO Company Secretary
PAN:DEWPD8087P PAN:BZJPB5384H



Bikewo Green Tech Limited
(Formerly known as Bikewo Green Tech Private Limited)
CIN : U74999TG2016PLC113345
Annexure II-Statement of Profit and Loss
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Pl Note For the period ended For the year ended
Nos. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A Income
(a) Revenue from operations 16 2,498.78 2,056.85
(b) Other income 17 15.43 5.01
Total income (A) 2,514.21 2,061.86
B Expenditure
(a) Purchases of stock-in-trade 18 2,288.05 2,048.42
(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in- 19 (293.95) (229.19)
progress and stock-in-trade
(c) Employee benefit expenses 20 113.60 122.73
(d) Finance cost 21 31.05 27.50
(€) Depreciation & amortization expense 22 33.97 32.97
(f) Other expenses 23 108.79 47.76
Total expenses (B) 2,281.31 2,050.18
C  Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (A-B) _ 232.90 11.68
D Exceptional items - -
E Profit/(Loss) before tax (C-D) 232.90 11.68
F Tax expense: 24
(a) Tax expense for current year 55.30 -
(b) Short/(Excess) provision of earlier year - 0.92
(c) Deferred tax 10.39 0.96
Net current tax expenses 65.69 1.88
G Profit/(Loss) for the period from continuing operations 167.21 9.80
(E-F)
H Other comprehensive income
(1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total comprehensive income for the period (G+H) 167.21 9.80
Earnings per share [nominal value of INR 10 per share] 25
- Basic 2.51 0.19
- Diluted 251 0.19

The above statement should be read with Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure V, and Notes to
Financial Information appearing in Annexure V1.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For N G Rao & Associates For Bikewo Green Tech Limited
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra/ti({n Number: (

/7 Ij{_»/

e

Rama Mohan Thammi

énideep Katepalli

- Managing Director Director

G.Nagesw ra Rao DIN:07840019 DIN: 02331058

Partner

M. No.:207300 ey M

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 18.07.2024 e '
Sivaji Dusari Rakshita Agarwal
CFO Company Secretary

PAN:DEWPD8087P PAN:BZJPB5384H




Bikewo Green Tech Limited
CIN : U74999TG2016PLC113345

Annexure ITI- Statement of Cash Flows
(Amount in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the period ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

A) Cash flow from operating activities :

Net Profit before tax 232.90 11.68
Adjustment for :
Depreciation 33.77 32.97
Finance cost 31.05 27.50
Operating profit before working capital changes 297.72 72.15
Changes in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (293.95) (229.19)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 3145 (103.59)
(Increase)/Decrease in short term loans & advances (664.97) 1.58
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (47.42) 18.11
(Increase)/Decrease in non current assets 1.80 0.60
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 128.25 76.10
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 49.82 322.78
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 55.30 (17.25)
Increase/(Decrease) in short term borrowings 50.90 127.12
Cash generated from operations before tax and exceptional item (391.10) 268.41
Income tax paid / payable (net) (55.30) (0.92)
Cash flow before exceptional item (446.40) 267.49
Exceptional items - -
Net cash flow from operating activities (446.40) 267.49
B) Cash Flow From Investing Activities :
Purchase/Sale of property, plant and equipment (245.83) (182.16)
Purchase of intangible assets (0.24) (1.50)
Net cash flow from investing activities (246.07) (183.66)
C) Cash Flow From Financing Activities :
Issue of shares 786.35 -
Increase/(Decrease) in long term borrowings (59.26) (54.53)
Interest Paid (31.05) (27.50)
Net cash flow from financing activities 696.04 (82.03)
Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash equivalents 3.57 1.80
Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3.84 2.04
Cash equivalents at the end of the year 7.41 3.84
Notes :-
Particulars i Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 6.31 3.84
Balances with banks - =
- In Current Accounts 1.10 -

2.01 The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method set out in the ap,

Standard (Ind AS) 7 on "Statement of Cash Flows".

plicable Indian Accounting

2.02The above statement should be read with Basis of Preparation, Significant Accounting Policies appearing in Annexure V, and

Notes to Financial Information appearing in Annexure VI.

2.03 This is the Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date.

For N G Rao & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratio;:}Numbe

G.Nageswara Rao
Partner

M. No.:207300
Place: Hyderabad
Date: 18.07.2024

For Bikewo Green Tech Limited

Manideep Katepalli
Managing Director
DIN:07840019

Sivaji Dusari
CFO
PAN:DEWPD8087P

yloodee

Director
DIN: 02331058

Qo3
Rakshita Agarwal
Company Secretary

PAN:BZJPB5384H
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Note 2

Intangible assets

PARTICULARS Software Total
As at 31 March 2024
Gross Carrying Amount
Opening gross carrying amount 19.74 19.74
Additions 0.24 0.24
Disposals/Adjustment - -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 19.98 19.98
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 10.16 10.16
Depreciation charged during the year 243 2.43
Disposals/Adjustments - -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 12.58 12.58
Net Carrying Amount 7.39 7.39
PARTICULARS Software Total
As at 31 March 2023
Gross Carrying Amount
Opening gross carrying amount 18.24 18.24
Additions 1.50 1.50
Disposals/Adjustment - -
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 19.74 19.74
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening accumulated depreciation 7.05 7.05
Depreciation charged during the year 3.11 3.11
Disposals/Adjustments - -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 10.16 10.16
Net Carrying Amount 9.58 9.58




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bikewo Green Tech Limited(CIN : U74999TG2016PLC113345)
Annexure VI- Notes to Financial Information

(Amount in INR lakhs, except for share data unless otherwise stated)

Note 3

Note 4

Note 5

Note 6

Deferred tax balances (net)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Opening balance 3.42 2.46
- on account of difference between book and tax depreciation - 0.96
Current Year deferred Tax Liability 10.39
Total (Net) 13.81 3.42
Other non-current assets

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other non-current asset - 1.80
Total (Net) - 1.80
Inventories

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

(At lower of cost and net realizable value)

Trading goods 1,035.33 741.38
Purchase-in-transit - -
Total 1,035.33 741.38
Trade receivables

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Trade receivables

- Others 85.17 108.83

- Related parties - -

Less: expected credit loss allowance (7.80) -
7737 108.83

Further classified as:

Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 85.17 108.83
85.17 108.83

For Trade Receivables Ageing, refer Notes to Accounts- Note 27




Note 7

Note 8

Note 9

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 6.31 3.84
Balances with banks
- In Current Accounts 1.10 -
Total 7.42 3.84
Short-term loans and advances
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Vendor Advances 9.80
Staff Advances 16.13
Others 682.12 43.09
Total 708.06 43.09
Other current assets
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Security deposit
Prepaid expenses
Deposits with revenue authorities

Advances for supply of goods and rendering of services

Other current assets

Total

30.18 74.37
0.77 -

99.83 47.98
38.97 -

169.76 122.35




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bikewo Green Tech Limited(CIN : U74999TG2016PLC113345)
Annexure VI- Notes to Financial Information

(Amount in INR lakhs, except for share data unless otherwise stated)

Note 10 Share capital
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorised
Number of shares 1,40,00,000 22,00,000
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,400.00 220.00
Issued
Number of shares 91,57,250 20,40,300
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 915.73 204.03
Subscribed & Paid up
Number of shares 91,57,250 20,40,300
Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up 915.73 204.03
a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per equity
share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors, if any, is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.
During the FY 23-24, Preferential Allotments, Share transfers, Bonus Issues has took Place. Details are as follows:
a) On 03-10-2023, 6,59,700 shares having Face Value of Rs 10 per share were newly issued @ Rs 36 per share(i.e.,Securities Premium of Rs 26 per
share has been received).
b) On 11-11-2023, M/s MIC Electronics Ltd(Holding Co) transferred its entire 10,40,300 shares of to Satyapoorna chander Y(Promoter).
¢) On 29-11-2023, 9,62,900 shares having Face Value of Rs 10 per share were newly issued @ Rs 57 per share(i.e., Securities Premium of Rs 47
per share has been received).
d) On 04-12-2023. 54.94.350 shares bonus shares has been issued.
b) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting period / year:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the period / year 20,40,300 20,40,300
Add: Shares issued during the year 71,16,950 -
Balance at the end of the period / year 91,57,250 20,40,300
As per the Companies Act, 2013, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts in the event of liquidation of the Company. The distribution will be in proportion
- There is no dividend paid or proposed during the year and during the previous year.
c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent of equity shares in the Company:
Name of Shareholders As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Satyapoorna Chander Yalamanchili 53,88,125 4,89,950
% Holding 58.84% 24.01%
Manideep K 4,58,750 -
% Holding 5.01% 0.00%
MIC Electronics Ltd - 10,40,300
% Holding 0.00% 50.99%
N Vidhya Sagar Reddy 9,20,550 2,04,020
% Holding 10.05% 10.00%
Manvi Talwar 13,82,550 1,04,020
% Holding 15.10% 5.10%
V Vivek Reddy - 1,02,010
% Holding 0.00% 5.00%
d) Shareholding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters at the end of the period As at 31 March 2024
Promoter's name No. of Shares % of total shares % change during
the period
Satyapoorna Chander Yalamanchili 53,88,125 58.84% -34.83%
Manideep K 4,58,750 5.01% -5.01%
N Vidhya Sagar Reddy 9,20,550 10.05% -0.05%
Manvi Talwar 13,82,550 15.10% -10.00%
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year As at 31 March 2023
Promoter's name No. of Shares % of total shares % change during
Satyapoorna Chander Yalamanchili 4,89,950 24.01%
Manideep K - 0.00%
N Vidhya Sagar Redgyz~ 2,04,020 10.00%
Manvi Talwar / 1,04,020 5.10%
& 2
- > il £




Note 11

Note 11

a)

b)

Note 12

Note 12

Note 12

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other equity
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Reserves and surplus (Note 11A) 760.97 519.11
Total 760.97 519.11
Reserves and surplus
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Securities premium

Balance as per beginning of current reporting period 416.97 416.97
Add: Premium received on issue of shares 624.09 -
Less: Issue of bonus shares (549.44) -
Balance as per end of current reporting period (A) 491.62 416.97
Retained earnings
Balance as per beginning of current reporting period 102.13 92.34
Add: Profit for the year 167.21 9.7952
Balance as per end of current reporting period (B) 269.34 102.13
Total (A+B) 760.97 519.11
Borrowings (Refer Note 29 for terms and security details)
Long-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Secured Loan

- From bank and financial institutions 121.21 180.48
121.21 180.48

Unsecured Loan

- From bank and financial institutions - -

- From related parties - -

- From others - -

Total 121.21 180.48

Short-term borrowings

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Secured Loan

- Current maturities of long term borrowings 84.29 39.91

- From bank and financial institutions 364.23 379.74
448:52 419:64

Unsecured Loan

- From related parties 182.89 160.86
182.89 160.86

Total 631.41 580.51

Secured Borrowings 569.73 600.12

Unsecured Borrowings 182.89 160.86




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13 Trade payables

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

For Goods & Services

- Micro, small and medium enterprises 194.97 -

- Others 17.78 84.51
212.75 84.51

Further classified to:

- Related party - -

- Others 212.75 84.51
212.75 84.51

For Trade Payables Ageing, refer Notes 10 Accounts- Note 27

Note 14 Other current liabilities
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Salaries payable 17.47 19.20
Statutory dues payable 84.84 11.85
Security deposit received 9.56 19.00
Advance received 235.39 301.41
Other payable 75.92 38.88
Provisons 16.97

Total 440.16 390.34

Note 15 Current tax assets (net)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Provision for income tax (net of advance tax) 55.30 -

Total 55.30 -




Bikewo Green Tech Limited(CIN : U74999TG2016PLC113345)

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annexure VI- Notes to Financial Information

(Amount in INR lakhs, except for share data unless otherwise stated)

Note 16  Revenue from operations
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from traded goods 2,328.25 1,987.22
Revenue from service income 170.54 69.64
Total 2,498.78 2,056.85
Note 17 Other income
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Forfieted income - -
Sales commission 0.10 -
Other income 8.60 5.01
Insurance commission - 3.16 -
Insurance received 2.19 -
Sales Discount Received 1.37
Total 15.43 5.01
Note 18 Purchases of stock-in-trade
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Purchases 2,288.05 2,048.42
Total 2,288.05 2,048.42
Note 19 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Inventories at the beginning of the vear
Purchase-in-transit - 24.81
Stock-in-trade 741.38 487.38
Inventories at the end of the year
Purchase-in-transit - -
Stock-in-trade 1,035.33 741.38
Total (293.95) (229.19)
Note 20 Employee benefit expenses
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus
Director's remuneration

Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

88.60
15.00
4.76
5.24

116.82

3.20
2.71

113.60




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 21  Finance cost
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest expense 31.05 26.08
Other borrowing costs - 1.42
Total 31.05 27.50
Note 22 Depreciation & amortization expense
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation & amortization expense 33.77 3297
Total 33.77 32.97
Note 23 Other expenses
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Payment to auditor (Note 23A) 3.00 2.00
Advertisment charges / Marketing charges 0.64 2.72
Insurance Expenses 4.58 0.77
Digital marketing expenses 4.18 -
Interest on income tax and TDS 0.21 0.54
Printing & stationery 4.97 1.36
Rent 16.52 11.46
Telephone & internet charges 1.66 1.29
Office maintenance 4.91 6.93
Travelling charges 5.76 0.93
Repairs & maintenance 0.32 2.56
Electricity charges 1.65 1.75
Rates & Taxes 0.98 0.35
Bank charges 1.53 1.27
Business promotion 1.94 0.84
Consultancy charges 0.40 0.08
IPO Expenses = -
Other expenses 11.06 2.81
Documentation charges - 0.80
Discount given 13.83 -
Transport charges 6.79 9.29
Packing charges 0.55 -
Dealer activity reimbursement expenses 2.53 -
Provision for Advances 12.97
Expected Credit Loss 7.80
Total 108.79 47.76
Note 23A Auditor's remuneration:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

- For audit

3.00

2.00

3.00




Note 24

Note 25

25

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tax expense

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Current tax:
- Current period/year 55.30 -
- Earlier year - 0.92
Deferred tax:
- Attributable to origination and reversal of temporary difference: 10.39 0.96
Total tax expense recognized 65.69 1.88
Earnings per share
Earnings per share (pre bonus issue)

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

FRN:0093995

(i) Profit for basic/diluted earning per share of face value of INR 10 each
Profit for the period/year 167.21

(ii) Calculation of Weighted average number of equity shares for (basic and diluted)

Number of equity shares at the beginning and end of the period/y 66,73,227
Earnings per share [nominal value of INR 10 per share]

- Basic 2.51
- Diluted 2.51

HYDERABAD

9.80

51,00,750
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Note 30 Statement Of Related Party Transaction

1 Names of the related parties with whom transaction were carried out during the years and description of relationship:

A. Mr. Satyapoorna Chander
B. Mr. Rama Mohan Thammineni
C. M/s. MIC Electronics Limited

2 Transaction with Key Management Personnel/Directors

Promoter
Director
Holding Company

Sr. No.Nature of Transaction

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

1 Director Remuneration

Mr. Satyapoorna Chander 40.00 -
2 Loan Taken
Mr. Satyapoorna Chander 46.77 26.23
3 Loan Repaid
Mr. Satyapoorna Chander 29.74 26.23
4  Purchases
M/s. MIC Electronics Limited 610.66 -
S Payments made
M/s. MIC Electronics Limited 492.67
6 Shares transfer
M/s MIC Electronics Ltd(Shares Sold) 104.03
Mr. Satyapoorna Chander (Shares allotted) 104.03
7 Loans obtained
M/s MIC Electronics Ltd 5.00
3 _Balances Outstanding at the end of the Year
Sr. No.Nature of Transaction As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1 Unsecured Loan

Mr. Satyapoorna Chander 17.03 -
2 Unsecured Loan

Loan from Hn](‘ing pnmpan} 16586 16086
3 Sundry Creditors

M/s MIC Electronics Ltd 176.05

Note: On 11-11-2023, M/s MIC Electronics Ltd(Holding Co) transferred its entire 10,40,300 shares of to Satyapoorna chander
Y(Promoter). As on reporting date(i.e., on 31-03-2024), M/S MIC Electronics Ltd is not a related party to the Company.
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Note 33

34

35

36

37

38

39

Segment Reporting

The company operates in Single Business Segment to Leasing of electric vehicles. Accordingly disclosure requirements of Ind Accounting
Standard 108 - Segment Reporting as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 have not been furnished.

The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material forseeable losses. The

company does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at March 3 1, 2024, March 31, 2023.

CSR

The provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of Companies Act 2013 is not applicable for the Company.

No Capital commitments or Contingent liabilities arised during the year.

No subsidies or incentives received from the government for any project.

There are no subsequent events either adjusting or non-adjusting which requires to be disclosed.

Value of Imports / Exports calculated on C.LF basis

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Raw material

Stores and spares

Service Income

Purchase of finished goods

TOTAL

40

Expenditure in Foreign Currency (On Accrual basis)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Business promotion expenses
Interest paid

License fees

Legal and professional fees
Production expenses
Commission

Technical cost

Travelling and conveyance

TOTAL

41

Imported and indig

raw_materials, components and spare

Particulars

Ysof totat

. Amount
consumption

o of total

. Amount
consumption

March 31, March 31,
2024 2024

March 31, March 31,
2023 2023

Imported
Raw Materials

TOTAL

0.00%| -
0.00% -

0.00% -
0.00% -

0% -

0% -

2\
RN:0093995\»
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42

43

Other Disclosures
a. The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding

anv Benami provertv. :
b. The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560

of Companies Act. 1956.
¢. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

d. The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual currency during the financial year.

¢. The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(i) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
f. The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions
of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Social Security Code, 2020

The Code on Social Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to employee benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has received
Presidential assent on September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and
Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are
applicable is yet to be notified and rules for quantifying the financial impact are also not yet issued. The Company will assess the impact of
the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related
rules to determine the financial impact are published.




Bikewo Green Tech Limited (CIN : U74999TG2016PLC113345)
Annexure V- Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting Policies & Other Accounting Policies

1. Corporate Information

"BIKEWO GREEN TECH LIMITED Company, incorporated in India, having its registered office at Plot No.502B, Amara Jyothi,
Road No.31, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana 500033. The company is primarily engaged in the Sale of Electrical Vehicles &
Resale of Used Vehicles."

a. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian
Accounting Standards) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in compliance with all material aspects of
the Indian Accounting Standards (AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements have
been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy until now (hitherto) in use with those of previous year.

b) The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

¢) Allassets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle, and
other criteria set out in the Schedule I1I to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities,

2. Material Accounting Policies:
a. Revenue Recognition

Revenue on sale of products is recognised on delivery of the products, upon passing of title of goods and / or on transfer of significant
risk and rewards of ownership thereto.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised as the service is completed and for which there is certainty of ultimate collection.
Interest Income is recognised in the profit and loss account on accrual basis.

b.  Property, Plant & Equipment

Tangible Assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price,
borrowing costs, if capitalization criteria are met and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use which includes taxes, freight, and in ati allocated incidental expenditure during construction’ quisition and
exclusive of CENVAT /Input tax credit (IGST/CGST and SGST) or other tax credit available to the Company.

When parts of an item of tangible assets have different usefil lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure relating to tangible assets is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits
from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed atleast at each year end. If the expectations differ from
previous estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the
enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use which includes taxes, freight, and installation and allocated incidental expenditure during
construction/ acquisition and exclusive of CENVAT/ Input tax credit IGST/CGST and SGST) or other tax credit available to the
Company.

Subsequent expenditure relating to intangi sefsids capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increa,;é’@éhé ié'u'ﬁ\;\ry‘e\beneﬁts
from such asset beyond its previously/assessed sta \td of performance. len < X

)




Bikewo Green Tech Limited (CIN : U74999TG2016PLC113345)
Annexure V- Basis of Preparation, Material Accounting Policies & Other Accounting Policies

Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets’ net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future

cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

After impairment, depreciation/amortization is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life

c. Inventories
Raw materials, Components, Consumables, stores and spares, and packing material are valued at lower of cost. However, these
items are considered to be realisable at replacement cost if the finished goods, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold
below cost.
Cost of Consumables, stores and spares are expensed in the year of purchase.

d. Taxes on Income

Tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for, using the tax rates and laws
that have been substantively enacted as of the reporting date.

the case may be) to be realised.

At each reporting date, the Company reassesses the unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognizes
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company
recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum
Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes
down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

e. Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end

(ii) Defined contribution plans
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company
has no further payment obligations once_the_contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributio Aok OgN: 8ed as employee benefit expense when they are due.
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3. Other Accounting Policies:
a.  Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (Rs.) or ¥ which is also the Company's functional currency.All
the amounts stated in the financial statements are presented in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated.

b. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) requires management of the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities as at the date of the Financial Statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although
these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods. Examples of such
estimates include future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans, recognition of Deferred Tax Assets and useful lives
of Property, Plant & Equipment.

¢. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification.

An asset is current, when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

* It is expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* It is Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current."

"A liability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

e It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

d. Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable

to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessa axke a-substantial period of time to get ready fo ended use are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the period in which they are incurred.

e. Foreign currency translation

Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical
cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; non-monetary items which
are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that
existed when such values were determined.

Exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting the Company’s monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as
income or as expenses in the year in which they occur.

Forward Exchange Contracts:
The Company uses foreign exchange forward col
foreign exchange. These derivatives are ge&e&xﬁ!
derivative instruments are accounted as follows*

BEEGCES

derivative instruments to hedge its exposure on account of movements in
-“entefedhwith banks and not used for trading or speculation pu
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for the period. The exchange difference on such a forward exchange contract is calculated as the difference between
i) the foreign currency amount of the contract translated at the exchange rate at the Balance Sheet date, or the settlement date
where the transaction is settled during the reporting period, and
ii) the same foreign currency amount translated at the later of the date of inception of the forward exchange contract and the
last reporting date. Such exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the reporting period in
which the exchange rates change.

Forward contracts which are entered into to hedge the foreign currency risk of the highly probable transactions or firm commitments
are valued at fair value at each Balance Sheet date. The resultant loss from these transactions is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. However, in case of resultant gains, such gains are not accounted in the books of accounts of the Company. Decrease in
fair valuation loss already recongnised in earlier years are reversed in the year of such decrease in fair valuation loss.

f. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in
dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in the rights issue, share
split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

g. Leases
As a Lessee »
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are for the premises which are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and

Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

h.  Contingent Liability, Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that probably will not
require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.
i.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, and short-term deposits with an original maturity period of three
months or less.
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1. Corporate Information

"BIKEWO GREEN TECH LIMITED Company, incorporated in India, having its registered office at Plot No.502B, Amara Jyothi, -

Road No.31, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana 500033. The company is primarily engaged in the Sale of Electrical Vehicles &
Resale of Used Vehicles."

a. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India (Indian
Accounting Standards) under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis in compliance with all material aspects of
the Indian Accounting Standards (AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements have
been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy until now (hitherto) in use with those of previous year.

b) The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are applied
consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

¢) All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle, and
other criteria set out in the Schedule I11 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of business and the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its
operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2. Material Accounting Policies:
a.  Revenue Recognition

Revenue on sale of products is recognised on delivery of the products, upon passing of title of goods and / or on transfer of significant
risk and rewards of ownership thereto.

Revenue from services rendered is recognised as the service is completed and for which there is certainty of ultimate collection.
Interest Income is recognised in the profit and loss account on accrual basis.

b. Property, Plant & Equipment

Tangible Assets
Tangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price,
borrowing costs, if capitalization criteria are met and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its
intended use which includes taxes, freight, and installation and allocated incidents penditure during construeti isttion anc
exclusive of CENVAT /Input tax credit (IGST/CGST and SGST) or other tax credit available to the Company.

When parts of an item of tangible assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure relating to tangible assets is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits
from such asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

The useful life, residual value and the depreciation method are reviewed atleast at each year end. If the expectations differ from
previous estimates, the changes are accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the
enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured. Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use which includes taxes, freight, and installation and allocated incidental expenditure during
construction/ acquisition and exclusive of CENVAT/ Input tax credit IGST/CGST and SGST) or other tax credit available to the
Company.

Subsequent expenditure pefa
from such asset beyond/ifs

tangible assets is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an incre
isessed standard of performance.
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Impairment of Assets

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on
internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets’ net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value at the weighted average cost of capital.

After impairment, depreciation/amortization is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life

¢. Inventories

Raw materials, Components, Consumables, stores and spares, and packing material are valued at lower of cost. However, these
items are considered to be realisable at replacement cost if the finished goods, in which they will be used, are expected to be sold
below cost.

Cost of Consumables, stores and spares are expensed in the year of purchase.

d. Taxes on Income
Tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Provision for current tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the current accounting year in accordance with the
Income-tax Act, 1961.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts,
and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis.

The deferred tax for timing differences between the book and tax profits for the year is accounted for, using the tax rates and laws
that have been substantively enacted as of the reporting date.

Deferred tax charge or credit reflects the tax effects of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the
period. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are recognised using the tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there
is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward of
losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virtual certainty of realisation of such assets. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each balance sheet date and are written-down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as
the case may be) to be realised.

At each reporting date, the Company reassesses the unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company recognizes
MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company
recognizes MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum
Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the Statement of Profit and Loss and
shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes
down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

e. Employee Benefits

(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end
of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are
presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(ii) Defined contribution plans
The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company
has no further payment obliﬁ ions once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accoii as defined
contribution plans and the cofrbutions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

AL
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3. Other Accounting Policies:
a. Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (Rs.) or 2 which is also the Company's functional currency.All
the amounts stated in the financial statements are presented in Rs. Lakhs unless otherwise stated.

b. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) requires management of the
Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities as at the date of the Financial Statements and the results of operations during the reporting period. Although
these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ from those
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the current and future periods. Examples of such
estimates include future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans, recognition of Deferred Tax Assets and useful lives
of Property, Plant & Equipment.

¢. Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current and non-current classification.

An asset is current, when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

* It is expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

« It is Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified as non-current.”

"A liability is current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

* It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

* It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

d. Borrowing cost

e. Foreign currency translation

Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Conversion:

Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical
cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; non-monetary items which
are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that
existed when such values were determined.

Exchange differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting the Company’s monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognised as
income or as expenses in the year in which they occur.

Forward Exchange Contracts:
The Company uses foreig
foreign exchange. These 4
derivative instruments afé

ard contracts derivative instruments to hedge its exposure on acc of mo'vémg s in
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For forward contracts which are entered into to hedge the foreign currency risk of the underlying instrument outstanding on the date
of entering into that forward contract, the premium or discount on such contracts is amortized as income or expense over the life of
the contract. Any profit or loss arising on the cancellation or renewal of forward contracts is recognized as an income or expense
for the period. The exchange difference on such a forward exchange contract is calculated as the difference between
i)  the foreign currency amount of the contract translated at the exchange rate at the Balance Sheet date, or the settlement date
where the transaction is settled during the reporting period, and
i) the same foreign currency amount translated at the later of the date of inception of the forward exchange contract and the
last reporting date. Such exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the reporting period in
which the exchange rates change.

Forward contracts which are entered into to hedge the foreign currency risk of the highly probable transactions or firm commitments
are valued at fair value at each Balance Sheet date. The resultant loss from these transactions is recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. However, in case of resultant gains, such gains are not accounted in the books of accounts of the Company. Decrease in
fair valuation loss already recongnised in earlier years are reversed in the year of such decrease in fair valuation loss.

f.  Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders (after
deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in
dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period.

The weighted average numbers of equity shares are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in the rights issue, share
split and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without
corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

g. Leases
As a Lessee
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are for the premises which are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and

Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

h. Contingent Liability, Provisions and Contingencies

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires an outflow of
resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that probably will not
require an outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recorded nor disclosed in the financial statements.
i.  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash on hand and at bank, and short-term deposits with an original maturity period of three
months or less.
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[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
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below:
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To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
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Directors and Auditor’s thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rama Mohan
2 Thammineni, (DIN: 02331058) who retires by rotation
and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3 Appointment of Statutory Auditors:




BIKEWO GREEN TECH LIMITED SO ™
BikeWo

Electrifying India

Signed this ............. day of eeeeevevvininininn 2024.
Affix
Revenue
Stamp
Signature of shareholder: Signature of Proxy
holder(s):

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.



BIKEWO GREEN TECH LIMITED SO ™
BikeWo

Electrifying India

ATTENDANCE SLIP FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(To be surrendered at the venue of the meeting)

I certify that I am a registered shareholder/proxy/representative for the registered shareholder(s) of
Bikewo Green Tech Limited.

I hereby record my presence at the 8" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Bikewo
Green Tech Limited on Saturday, 315 August 2024 At 11:00 A.M at the Registered Office of the
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Telangana, India..

DP ID* Reg.folio no.
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